BRI DGTON PLANNI NG BOARD
MEETI NG

Board of Sel ectnmen’s Meeting Room April 3, 2007
7:00p. m

The Bridgton Planning Board was called to order at 7:00p.m by Fred
Packard, Chair. Those in attendance were: Fred Packard, Chair; Steve
Collins, Vice Chair; Christopher MDaniel; Dee Mller, Alternate;
David Lee, Alternate. Absent were: David Diller; Gordon Davis.

Fred appointed Dee MIller, Aternate, and David Lee, Aternate, to
act in the capacity of absent regul ar nenbers.

Approval of Mnutes — March 6, 2007

Fred said | was not present for this nmeeting so | will turn this over
to Steve Collins who acted as chair.

Dee notioned to approve the minutes as presented. David L. 2",

3 Approve / 0 Oppose / 2 Abstain (Fred and Chri stopher)

PUBLI C HEARI NG

Mount ai n Lane Subdi vi si on/ Chet Honer

Mount ai n Road; Map 7 Lot 18

7 Lot Subdi vision

Represented by Christopher D Matteo, Sebago Technics

Steve said at the prelimnary presentation | indicated that | was
concerned about the stormiater managenent and phosphorous study. At that
time M. D Matteo indicated that he would verify the information. Steve
said | did ny own detailed analysis and if ny nunbers are correct the
phosphorous export presented to the Board is five tinmes the allowable
limt. There is no small adjustnent that can be made to the plan that can
be nade conpliant to the State’s allowance. | would suggest that this
application be tabled so that Sebago Technics can review the stormater
managenment and phosphorous or we can proceed with the hearing but | wll
deny this application.

Onens MCul l ough was present representing Sebago Technics. St eve
reviewed his report with M. MCullough and the Planning Board. As a
result, the worksheets give a total of 1.299 x the .5 factor that the
State allows you and it gives ne .65| bs agai nst what we both agree is the
al |l owabl e 0.13. That is a five fold excess. M. MCullough said the
i ndividual lots are going to be run through rain gardens allowable by LID
for phosphorous treatnent. Steve said you did not tell us that? M.
McCul | ough said it is on the plan. Steve said why wasn't that reflected
in your phosphorous control plan? Wat is the treatnent factor for LID?
M. MCull ough said | will have to review that.



Page 2
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

Fred said we received a letter from Mchael H Il (copy attached)
regarding concerns with this project. M. HIl said | am present and
represent Jan Maczuba and Virginia Thomas Lyon. My letter was witten
prior to seeing the submttal of Friday. There is a notation on the plan
that limts the nunber of bedroonms. According to the state m ninmum | ot

size this project requires 120 gallons per bedroom which totals 2,160
gal l ons per day which neans it needs to be an engineered system Also
if a disposal system has over 2,000 gallons per day it needs to be 300
away from the neighbor’s well and 300" away from the owners which it is
not .

M. MCullough said | would like to take this opportunity to gather
information fromthe Board and the Public so we know what the concerns
ar e.

M. MCullough said we are proposing to go to a condom ni um concept
which allowed us to elimnate the odd configuration of the lots. The
condom nium concept is a nuch nore defined project and provides

supervi sion of the open space via association docunents. There will be
underground wutilities, a comon septic field and individual wells
serving each of the buildings. Wen we grade and build the road

obviously we have to grade out to the side slopes, therefore, we have
added a notation that if we get to within 5 of the property line we
will replant to provide sonme buffering between the |ot |ines.

Bob Hanson, abutter, said this is a very dense devel opnent. There is a
stream that runs down the mddle of the property which | don’t see any
provi sions on how that drainage is going to be handl ed. In order to
do the devel opnent the trees will be renoved right up to the lot lines
i npacting the adj acent property owners.

M. H Il said the owner is requesting several waivers which | am not
sure that the Board has authority to waive. | don’t believe the Board
can approve the road as it is currently configured, for the shoul der
side slope and grade. Also, the change froma 7 lot subdivision to a
condom nium woul d al so nean that the applicant has to go through the
Site Plan Review According to your Sewerage Ordinance, if it is
going to be a common septic system there nust be an agreenent wth
certai n mai ntenance requirenents.

M. MCllough said we have a site specific grading plan, mapped the
wat ershed, along with certain provisions to deal with the drainage
We did go through the analysis for the pre and post devel opnent and it
does not show an increase in the rate of runoff for the project.

M. MCllough said we are in conpliance with the Town of Bridgton
Ordi nance regardi ng density.



Page 3
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

M. MCullough said this will be a private drive with no potential for
extension, therefore, the Planning Board should determine if we need
t he waivers. Fred said does the drive still require waivers? Rob

Baker, Code Enforcement O ficer, said this is a road not a driveway so
it would require waivers.

M. MCullough said the erosion fromthe site is very specific. This
includes trees, predevel opnent, developnent and post devel opnent
stabilization and requirenents.

Steve said the stormmater control plan says that your soils group is
“A”, however, they are “C'. M. MCullough said when a septic system
design is done the soils are classified differently than stornwater
runof f .

Dee said you don’'t have any information on the rain gardens and how
they are going to be mamintained. Also, are you planning on requiring
the units to maintain your calcul ations. M. MCullough said we are
pl anning on four 3 bedroom units and three 2 bedroom units. Dee said
i f a buyer wants a 3 bedroom unit and they have been all accounted for
what provisions have you nade. M. MCullough said there wll be
condom ni um docunents. Dee said will it be site specific? M.
McCul | ough said vyes. M. HIll said there is additional information
that is needed for condom niunms that has not been submtted such as
drawi ngs for the exterior of the building, materials for the building,
floor plan, vegetation and total maxinmum floor area and ground
cover age. M. MCullough said we are going to provide specific
bui | di ng envel opes which would be built to the association docunents.

Dee said there are multi unit devel opments with comon |and not in one
building which could be considered in a different category |ike
cl ust er housi ng. | don’t think this requires review under Site Plan.
Fred said the Site Plan Review Odinance requires review for
Condom ni um proj ects.

Steve notioned to table the application and the Planning Board will
review the application under Subdivision Regulations only and not Site
Pl an Review. Dee 2", 5 Approve / 0 QOppose

A d Busi ness

Robert & Gail Stone

Kezar Hei ghts Road; Map 16 Lot 2C
2 Lot Subdi vision

Revi ew and Accept Findings of Fact

Fred turned the neeting over to Steve because he was absent and Steve
presi ded at this neeting.



Page 4
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

Steve reviewed the findings with the Board.

Dee notioned to approve the findings as submitted. David L. 2",
3 Approve / 0 Oppose / 2 Abstain (Fred and Chri stopher).

Steve turned the neeting back over to Fred.

Canmp M cah

Peabody Pond Road/ Mbose Cove Lodge Road; Map 1 Lot 1
Expansi on of Youth Canp

Represented by Tom Duboi s, Min-Land Dev. Consultants

M. Dubois said the only buildings being proposed by Canp M cah which are
in Bridgton is one CIT building, the remaining buildings are in Sebago
W are requesting an amendnent to our existing site plan review permt
for that one additional building. We have reviewed your Odinance and
can’t find any references that require a joint neeting. W are schedul ed
to neet with the Town of Sebago on Tuesday, April 10, 2007. | am here
this evening to see if you are willing to approve that one change.

Steve said can you give us an idea of the roofage and inpervious area
existing in Bridgton? M. Dubois said | have not broken it down on a per
town basis. | can give you grand total for the entire site. Steve said
what is the square footage of the building you are adding on the Bridgton
si de. M. Dubois said it is 24x60. Fred said this is less than a
substantial change which could be reviewed by the Code Enforcenent
Oficer.

Steve notioned that according the requirenents of the Site Plan Review
Odinance this does not «constitute a substantial enlargenment and
therefore remand it the Code Enforcenment Oficer for review and
di sposition. David L. 2% 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

M . Baker said when Sebago officials contact me regarding a joint neeting
what is the census of the Board?

Chri stopher notioned that a joint meeting was not necessary. Steve 2",
5 Approve / 0 Oppose

G en Zaidman, CGtizen, said when the Board determnes that a project is
not substantial when can M. Baker make a decision? Fred said M. Baker
reviews a proposal and based on that forwards it to the Planning Board
for review At that tinme, we can nmake a determ nation to either review
the application or remand it the Code Enforcenent Oficer



Page 5
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

M. Zaidman said the O dinance says 25% expansion, is that 25% of a
buil ding or 25% of the whole canp? Steve said that is the basis of ny
notion, that it was the whol e devel opnent.

Steve notioned that because there is another application simlar to Canp
M cah that the agenda be taken out of order to review the application
subnmitted by Canp Kingswood. Christopher 2", 5 Approve / 0 Qppose

Canmp Ki ngswood

Wods Pond/ W | dwood Road; Map 5 Lot 14
Raze and Rebuil d Bunk Houses
Represented by Eric Bl oonberg

M. Bloonberg read his cover letter outlining the project wth the
Pl anning Board (copy attached). Steve said what is the total roof area
and inpervious area of the canp currently? M. Bloonberg said the
exi sting roofs are 9.12 pitch, steeper than the proposed 6.12. A so, the
overhang of the old roofs are 2°+ and new are 1'. Steve said what is the
net change? M. Bloonberg said | have counted 65 buil dings on site.

Steve notioned that because this is not a substantial change this
application be remanded to the Code Enforcenent O ficer for review and
di sposition. Dee 2". 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

M. Bloonberg said | do have other plans that are being considered in the
future, should |I contact M. Baker first? Fred said yes and he will nake
the determnation at that tinme. Steve said | would like it to be on the
record that these projects should be reviewed by the Planning Board and
at that tinme if we determne that it is not substantial the Planning
Board can remand it to the Code Enforcement O ficer

Cor nshop Brook Re-Devel opnent Proj ect

Par ki ng Lots

Depot Street; Map 27 Lot 5

Park Street; Map 23 Lot 26 and Lot 27

Request for Public Hearing

Represented by M cah N eny, Assistant Econom c Dev. Director

M. Neny said | am requesting a Public Hearing for the week of Apri
23" so that Planning Board can review the Site Plan Application for the
two parking lots that the Town is considering on Depot Street and Park
Street. Wat |evel of phosphorous and mtigation is the Planning Board
going to require? The engineer stated that the state normally requires a
certain level but the Town of Bridgton could potentially require a
greater level of mtigation. M. Baker said is the parking lot wthin
75 of Stevens Brook? M. N eny said | am not sure. M. Baker said if
it is it would come under the Shorel and Zoning Ordinance. |If it is



Page 6
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

beyond the 75 it goes to Site Plan which is a 10 year storm event and
requires a stormwater permt through the State.

George Sawyer, Engineer and Citizen, said are you creating 20,000sf of
new i npervious area? M. N eny said no. M. Sawer said | believe the
existing is nore than 75 fromthe brook.

Steve notioned to hold a Public Hearing on Mnday, April 23, 2007 at
7:00p.m Dee 2" 5 Approve / 0 Oppose

O chard Creek Estates/Joseph and Arlene Gllinari
Sout h Bridgton Road; Map 2 Lot 2

10 Lot Subdi vi sion

Represented by Ronal d Keni ston

M. Keniston said the Board asked us to define and delineate the buffers,
which we have done. W have run swales into the buffer areas for road
runof f . W put in a 10x40 area that will go anywhere downsl ope of the
building area to help control any excess water off the |lot or inpervious
area for the building. There is a brook on the southwesterly side of the
|l ot and we have outlined the 75 setback from the brook. W have shown
on the plan designated building site areas. If bio gardens are used they
wi |l be downgrade of the house |location and will be the responsibility of
the owner to maintain them There is |anguage on the plan regarding the
buffers and their maintenance. Also, a notation on the plan that BWMP' s
nmust be adhered to.

Dee said are the bio gardens required and if so they need to be defined
with provisions for maintenance? M. Keniston said the bio gardens can
be any size but typically they are 8-10" side and any length to cover the
area of the house and about 8 from the house and approximately 6” deep.
Dee said that should be told to people who are buying these |ots. M .
Keni ston said are we going to dictate where they are going to build their

house which would dictate where the bio gardens need to go. Dee said
does every house have to have a bio garden? M. Keniston said no, but it
woul d be ni ce. Steve said to neet the phosphorous six of the lots are

requi red to have wet ponds. Dee said are you going to require them or
are you suggesting then? M. Keniston said suggesting. Steve said you
are taking a 60% reduction in the export fromthe |ots because there is a
wet pond on specific lots? M. Keniston said a wet pond is not a bio
garden. Steve said then we need clarification.

Steve said what are your road dinensions? M. Keniston said it is an 18’
traveled way. Steve said what is the shoulder width? M. Keniston said
3’ shoul ders. Fred said you are asking for an exenption? M. Keniston
said yes. Steve said you didn't factor the shoulders into vyour
calculations. Fred said as long as they are reseeded and revegetated you
don’t need to.



Page 7
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

Steve said you are claimng buffer treatnents for the road sections and
the devel opnent of the |ots. How do the buffers add together? M.
Keniston said | need to review ny figures to give you a better
expl anati on.

M. Baker said the Board needs to take into consideration the maintenance
and inspection of wet ponds, bio gardens and other prevention nethods
related to phosphorous and stormwater and determine who is going to
perform these inspections. It should be the responsibility of the
property owner to hire soneone to do the inspection and report back to
the Town annually. Fred said this needs a road association so | think it
shoul d be their responsibility to submt a report to the Code Enforcenent
Oficer. M. Zaidman said is the Board going to suggest who is qualified

to do that inspection? Peter Lowell, Lakes Environnmental Association
said, wusually when third party inspections are done it is by an engi neer
or soils conservati on. The | anguage could say by a third party deened

conmpetent by the Code Enforcement O ficer. Fred said if these are going
to be required they need to be nonitored and we shoul d consider adding
that as a condition

M. Zaidman said if these are going to be nonitored are you going to
consider a tinme-franme or will it be forever? M. Lowell said it needs to
be site specific.

M. Keniston said you are suggesting that | add to the deed covenants
that the road association has the responsibility to inspect the buffers
and swales annually or following significant storm events by a person
deened conpetent by the Code Enforcenent O ficer? Fred said yes.

Fred said you should also add | anguage on the rain gardens. M. Zaidman
said if these rain gardens are going to be mandatory shouldn’t there be
sonet hing optional that is approved by DEP? Steve said each subdivision
plan is different based on the phosphorous and stornmwater study.

M. Lowell we are concerned with this devel opnent and the next one on
your agenda, therefore, we have asked Craig Higgins from Devel opnment
Services to review the two projects in reference to phosphorous and give
the Board sone coments. M. Hggins submtted an overview of the two
projects to the Board. This is a doable project providing the
phosphorous treatnent are consistent with the standards of DEP. There
are several ways to acconplish phosphorous reduction to insure that the
integrity of the environment through the subdivision neets the standards.
This application has not nmet the burden of the applicant’s responsibility
in identifying how the treatnment is going to occur. Fred said for
instance would a letter from Ken Gardner, soil scientist, suffice as
proof of the soils for the project? M. Hi ggins said yes, site specific.



Page 8
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

Justin G bbons, owner and devel oper, said | think the Board has di scussed
things that need to be done in the future but is inpossible for this
neeting or the next. These engineers are certified and there is nore
than one way to neet the phosphorous standards. M. H ggins said there
are many ways to acconplish the sanme goal, sonme active (construction),
sonme passive as long as you state and defi ne which ones you have chosen.

M. Zaidman said you have one engineer that says the plan is going to
work and now you have another engineer that says naybe there is a
different way to do this. Fred said | don't hear that, there is
confusion as to what is being done which needs to be clarified. M.
Zai dman said who is the Planning Board going to listen to? Are you going
to hire another firmor are you going to nmake the |andowner hire another
firn? M. Lowell said if you |look at the plan on the house lots it says
you have buffer treatnment and wet pond treatnent. You don’t know what
the wet pond specifics are. These are standards avail abl e through DEP.
This Board needs information on the plan to know that the standards are
met and to have enough information on the plan to know when a contractor
goes in to build what the standards are.

Steve notioned to table the application to give M. Keniston the
opportunity to submit nore detail. Dee 2". 5 Approve / 0 Qppose

WH-dwood—Estates Sandy Creek Estates/H ||l Top Land Devel opnent
Swanp Road & W I dwood Road; Map 9 Lot 16

6 Lot Subdi vision

Represented by Ronald |I. Keniston

M. Keniston said it is basically the sanme, the buffers needed to be
shown on the plan, there is a long driveway, and we have put in sone
controlled water areas to control water comng off the driveway.
Language has been added to the plan for maintenance and inspection of the
buf fers. Driveways for lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 will come off the WI dwod
Road and lots for #6 is com ng off the Swanp Road.

George Sawyer, Sawyer Engineering, said in your note permtting to the
buffer you may want to include | anguage to allow utilities.

Dee said the channels that say “stormmater control” is that the channel
defining the buffer or is there sone sort of treatnment that is supposed
to take place in the corridor? M. Keniston said wthin that corridor we
have a 10x40 control. Dee said it should be nore specific and include
provi sions for maintenance. M. G bbons said how can you be specific if
the style of the house may vary? Fred said | agree, we don't want to
dictate location and style of the hone. You need generic |anguage.



Page 9
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

M. Zaidman said why can’'t you take the drainage from the roof and
include it in the perinmeter drainage of the house? M. Hi ggins said
infiltration for phosphorous control is the best thing providing the
soils has capacity to absorb it.

M. Sawyer said you could create a small berm on the down hill side of
the building site and direct the water to whatever your treatnent
facility is.

M. Gbbons said do | enforce this, | sold the land, | created the
subdivision, or is it a Code Enforcenent issue? Fred said | think the
| anguage can be very basic.

M. Sawyer said the plan shows sone very deep buffers, you may not need
to capture the runoff as far as phosphorous. M. Hi ggins said you can
only get credit for a 250" buffer so buffers in excess of 250" are not
requi red. Wthout conplete information on the buffers | can't determ ne
that as far as the slope and the soils. Fred said if M. Keniston puts
in that the driveways are only 100° long, then you get all the credit.
M. Higgins said yes.

Christopher notioned to grant prelimnary approval for the project as
submtted and presented conditional upon a new test pit on lot 6,
restrict the length of the driveway on lots 1-5 to 100, reanalysis of
stormnvat er and phosphorous for the lots and if necessary a design for a
nmethod of mtigating the phosphorous, and if ditches are necessary they
will follow the contour of the |and downsl ope of the devel oped area and
add | anguage to exenpt utilities in the buffer. David L. 2",

5 Approve / 0 Oppose

New Busi ness

M chael and El ai ne C ancy

Noncarrow Way; Map 13 Lot 37-4

4 Lot Subdi vi sion

Represented by George Sawyer, Sawyer Engi neering & Surveying

M. Sawer said we are proposing four single famly lots that vary in
size from 2.5 to 4.3 acres. They are |located on Noncarrow Way which is
an existing dirt road off Route 302. From Route 302 to the start of this
project is approximtely 1,600 . The total area of the parcel is 14.7
acres. There are some covenants and restrictions associated with this
parcel. There are wetlands shown on the parcel along the westerly side
of the three lots below the road. Test pits were done for the previous
owner which I will note on the plan. Currently the road seens to have a
12-14’ travel ed way and then sone shoul ders, does it have to neet the 18
wi de roadway and the 3° shoulders? |If that is the case are the Cancy’s
required to build that road all the way from Route 302? Dee said how did



Page 10
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

the road pass for the existing houses? M. Sawer said they did not need
to conme to the Planning Board for review The census of the Board was
the road standards could not be waived but the devel oper would only be
responsible for the section they are devel oping. Fred said you should
al so plan on a hanmerhead at the end of the subdivision. M. Sawer said
are we in agreenent that what is there is a logging road and am | going
to try to nmeet the phosphorous requirenents for the new portion only?
The census of the Board was the road was existing and the additional
f oot age woul d be subject to phosphorous.

Approved Applications as per Bridgton Site Plan Review O dinance 4. A1
Lake Regi on House of Pizza and Fam |y Restaurant

224 Portland Road; Map 10 Lot 15B-1

Rest aur ant

Ms. Fleck said this is going to be in the building where Beef and Ski is
currently | ocated. The new restaurant will be going in the tw vacant
sections to the left of Beef and Ski.

Topi cs for Discussion

A. Site Plan Review Odi nance; Replace the existing one your notebooks
B. Streeters Subdivision/Pond Road; Wt hdrawn

C. Planning Board Meetings; Length of time and additional neetings

D

O di nances
1. Site Plan Review Odinance — Proposed anendnent for provisions for
“Amendnment or revisions to an approved Site Plan of Devel opnment”

Ms. Fleck said the Site Plan Review O di nance does not have provisions
for amendnents to an approved plan. Therefore, if soneone is doing even
a mnor revision they nust submt a conplete new application.

The census of the Board was due to the tine-frame for June 2007
referendum they would like to hold a workshop to discuss the anmendnent
and propose any changes for June 2008.

2. Shoreland Zoning Odinance — Proposed anendnent for “Dock size and
nunber restriction”

M. Baker said the Shoreland Zoning Odinance does not have specific
requi rements for dock size and nunber.

The census of the Board was due to the tine-frame for June 2007
referendum they would like to hold a workshop to discuss the anmendnent
and propose any changes for June 2008.



Page 11
Bri dgton Pl anni ng Board
April 3, 2007

3. O di nance Definitions; Shoreland Zoning O dinance and Subdivision
Regul ati ons

The census of the Board was due to the tine-frame for June 2007
referendum they would like to hold a workshop to discuss the anmendnent
and propose any changes for June 2008.

E. REM NDER; Public Hearing April 10, 2007 at 7:00p.m

Dee notioned to adjourn the neeting at 11:10p.m Steve 2",

5 Approve / 0 Oppose

Respectfully subm tted,

CGeorgi ann M Fl eck
Muni ci pal Secretary



